
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

22 January 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Economic Development Board
DATE: 30 January 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

MICHAEL LAWTHER
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Furlong (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Philpott (Chairman)
Councillor Beavis (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Mrs Huggins

Councillor Hutchison
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Economic Development Board
30 January 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.  

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD HELD 14 NOVEMBER 2018 (Pages 1 - 6)

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 28th January 2019.  The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
28 January 2019).

6.  GOSPORT HERITAGE ACTION ZONE (Pages 7 - 14)           Part II

To provide information about the Gosport Heritage Action Zone and 
seek authority to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with 
Historic England.

Rob Harper

7.  LEASE OF NO.2 BATTERY TO THE HISTORICAL DIVING 
SOCIETY (Pages 15 - 34)

           Part II 

To consider the terms of the lease proposed by the Council to the 
Historical Diving Society (The Society) to support their aims in 
repairing and improving the No 2 Battery and their long-term 
objective to develop and sustain a museum of diving history.    

Andy Morton 



Economic Development Board
30 January 2019

8.  RENEWAL OF LEASE-IN OF LAND AT FORTON LAKE FROM THE 
CROWN ESTATE (Pages 35 - 38)

       Part II 

To consider the terms offered by The Crown Estate agents for a 
renewal of the lease-in of land at Forton Lake for the retention of 
grassed open space.

Andy Morton 



Economic Development Board
14 November 2018

1

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WAS HELD ON 14 NOVEMBER 2018

Councillors Ms Ballard, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Blackman, Carter, Farr (Substituting for Mrs 
Cully), Hook (Substituting for Mrs Huggins), Hutchison, Jessop (Substituting for Bateman), 
Johnston, Miss Kelly, Pepper, Philpott, Mrs Prickett, Raffaelli and Westerby (Substituting for 
Ms Ballard)

15. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillors Bateman, Huggins, Ms 
Ballard and Mrs Cully. 

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Agenda item 7 Councillor Farr advised that he was a Member of GVA. 
Agenda item 9 Councillors Miss Kelly and Mrs Westerby advised that they had been active 
in promoting the consultation. 
Agenda item 9 Councillor Philpott declared a pecuniary interest and advised that he would 
leave the room and take no part in the discussion or voting. 
Agenda item 10 Councillor Carter declared a personal interest in Hornet Sailing Club
Agenda item 11 Councillor Johnston declared that the report was concerning the bridge 
located in his ward. 
Urgent agenda item - Councillors Beavis, Mrs Batty, Rev Blackman, Carter, Hook, Jessop, 
Philpott, Raffaelli declared that they knew the director of  Sisters Inn Arms Venues Limited 
(SIAV).

17. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BOARD HELD 19 SEPTEMBER 2018 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th September 2018 be signed as a 
true and correct record. 

18. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none.

19. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

There were none. 

20. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME (LDS) 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager seeking approval to 
publish a Local Development Scheme together with a ‘Review of the Policies of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029’.

RESOLVED: 
That the Economic Development Board approve

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Economic Development Board
14 November 2018

2

 Approves the Local Development Scheme November 2018 (as set out in Appendix A).

 Approves the ‘Review of the Policies of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029’ set out 
in Appendix B in the light of the requirements of the Government’s National Planning Policy 
Framework (July 2018).

.

21. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY PROTOCOL 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager requesting that 
consideration and approval be given to the framework for the spending of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which the Council is currently collecting.

Members welcomed the proposal. In answer to a Members question, the Board were 
advised that Gosport Voluntary Action was proposed as the mechanism to distribute the 
neighbourhood proportion as they were well versed with the local community. Other Local 
Authorities were using Parish Councils, which was not possible. 

The Board was advised that Section 106 agreements would still exist and that they were 
legal agreements between the Council and the Developer for items that were essential to 
the development site for it to progress. Examples included harbour defences or road 
networks. The Community Infrastructure Levy was a levy on developments which was 
combined in one pot to be spent across the Borough and spending was tightly governed. 

The Board was advised that the Regulation 123 list had been approved in 2014 and that if 
amendments were to be made to it, they would need to go out to consultation and be 
approved by the Economic Development Board but that this could be done at any time.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that other options were 
considered but that in the absence of Town and Parish Councils, GVA were best placed to 
facilitate the distribution. 

Consideration had been given to the distribution through You Decide but it was felt that 
Gosport Voluntary Action had a wider scope. The Board was advised that the finer details 
of the scheme were still being finalised but would come back to the Board. 

The Board was advised that the fee paid to GVA would be for the administration and 
management of the distribution of the funds.

Members felt that GVA were a suitable vehicle and welcomed that details of the proposals 
would be brought to a future board. Members recognised that GVA were the leads in the 
voluntary sector and worked with over 200 organisations and that the provision for them to 
distribute money to the community and by the community was the correct way for it to be 
processed.  It had been decided that the Youdecide scheme was not appropriate as more 
money would need to be spent on administration costs. 

RESOLVED:
That the Economic Development Board: 



Economic Development Board
14 November 2018

3

 Approves the principles of the CIL Spending Protocol, as set out in this report.

 Agrees that detailed measures relating to the spending of the CIL neighbourhood portion are 
worked up in discussion with the Gosport Voluntary Association (GVA) and are reported to 
the Board for approval at a later date.

22. STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

Consideration was giving to a report of the Planning Policy Manager advising the Board that 
following changes to the planning system it had been necessary to review and revise the 
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement on planning matters.

Members were advised that the statement would be put out for consultation and that as the 
consultation period included Christmas it would be extended to 8 weeks. 

It was requested that the reference to PCT be changed to reflect that it was now the CCG. 

RESOLVED: That the Economic Development Board approves the Draft Statement of 
Community Involvement Review (as shown in Appendix 1) for consultation purposes.

23. BURY ROAD CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL 

Councillor Philpott left the room and took no further part in the discussion or voting 
thereon. 

Consideration was given to the report of the Conservation and Design Manager requesting 
that consideration be given the adoption of the Bury Road Conservation Area Appraisal, as 
set out in Appendix A.

Members welcomed the report and requested that acknowledgement be given to the Royal 
Marines giving up a day’s pay to contribute to the War Memorial’s construction. The Board 
was advised that the Hospital was not currently a listed building but that Heritage England 
welcomed the support for such applications from groups such as the Gosport Society. 

Members took the opportunity to thank officers for their work in securing Gosport as a 
Heritage Action Zone. It would ensure that Gosport would receive an officer funded for 5 
years by Historic England and that work in Gosport would be considered priority. 

Members thanked the ward Councillors for their involvement in engaging the public in the 
consultation. 

RESOLVED: That the Bury Road Conservation Area Appraisal to support Policy LP12 of 
the adopted Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 to 2029 and as a material consideration 
when determining planning applications be approved.

24. RENEWAL OF LEASE-IN OF LAND AT HASLAR LAKE FROM THE CROWN 
ESTATE 



Economic Development Board
14 November 2018

4

Consideration was given to a report of the Property Services Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to the terms offered by The Crown Estate agents for a renewal of 
the lease-in of land at Haslar lake for the retention of a security fence. 

Members supported the proposal but questioned whether it would be possible to purchase 
the land. 

It was discussed as to whether the land was actually for sale and the Board was advised 
that approval could be given to the lease and subsequent enquiries could be made into the 
long term availability of the land. 

Members requested that an update be provided as to the status of the land. It was 
recognised that the renewal would not be due until February and that there was time it to be 
investigated before then. 

RESOLVED: That the terms negotiated by Property Services be approved and upon these 
terms authorise the Borough Solicitor to enter into a new agreement with The Crown.  

25. ECLIPSE BUSWAY COMPLETION OF PHASE 1 

Consideration was given to a report of the Property Services Manager seeking approval for 
the licence of land to Hampshire County Council (HCC), together with the dedication of land 
for highway purposes, to facilitate the construction and completion of Phase 1 of the Bus 
Rapid Transit scheme (BRT) by HCC.

Members were advised that the revised scheme had been approved and that the 
recommended scheme did not include the demolition of the road bridge. Members 
welcomed that the bridge would be remaining and that it was important for the safety of the 
many users of the cycle path including the young people from Brune Park School.

Members recognised the work that had been undertaken by officers at Hampshire County 
Council to deliver the scheme and recognised that the bridge remaining in place added 
significant cost to the project and recognised the hard work of the Councillors that had been 
involved in campaigning for it to remain. 

The Board acknowledged that 1600 people passed under the bridge in a 12 hour period 
and that if the bridge had been removed, people trying to use the crossing, plus an 
additional 300 buses a day would have caused significant traffic issues. 

Members thanked First Bus for their commitment to the scheme and recognised that they 
had invested £3,000,000 in new low emission buses and were looking at potential ways to 
extend the scheme to Daedalus. 

The Board was advised that funding had been achieved from the transforming cities funding 
as part of a combined effort with Portsmouth City Council. Both Southampton and 
Portsmouth had been shortlisted to receive funds to improve transport infrastructure. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approves the licence and dedication of the land referred to in 
the report for the proposed amended scheme (Eclipse Busway: Completion of Phase 1 – 
Retention of Rowner Road Bridge), and authorises the Borough Solicitor to enter into such 



Economic Development Board
14 November 2018

5

legal documentation as is necessary to effect this decision on such terms and conditions as 
are appropriate.  

26. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

The Board was advised that there was an urgent item to consider, the item was considered 
urgent as it was approved by the chief executive pursuant to 3.7 of the scheme of 
delegation – authority to make decisions reserved to board where urgency is such that it 
can’t wait until the next board meeting.  Where this power is exercised a report must be 
taken to the next board advising members of this.

The Chairman proposed that members of the public and the press be excluded from the 
meeting as the item was not for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

RESOLVED: That in relation to the following item the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 
the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during this item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemptions outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, for the reasons set out in the report

LEASE OF THE ALVERBANK HOUSE HOTEL

Consideration was given to an exempt report of the Chief Executive advising the Economic 
Development Board of his decision (under paragraph 3.7 of the officer scheme of 
delegation in the Gosport Borough Council Constitution) to approve the grant a new lease 
of the Alverbank Hotel to Sisters Inn Arms Venues Limited (SIAV).

The report of the Chief Executive was reported to the Board. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 7.52 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO.

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 30th January 2019
Title: Gosport Heritage Action Zone 
Author: Conservation and Design Manager
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE

To provide information about the Gosport Heritage Action Zone and seek 
authority to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with Historic 
England.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board notes the designation of the Heritage Action Zone status and 
delegates authority to the Head of Planning and Regeneration, in 
consultation with the Borough Solicitor, to agree terms and conclude a 
Memorandum of Understanding to be entered into with Historic England.

1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

An application for Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) status was submitted to 
Historic England in August 2018 as one of a number of grant initiatives for 
which bids were made. Gosport’s HAZ bid was successful, confirmed by 
Historic England on 24 October 2018, and officers have subsequently been 
tasked with completing a draft Delivery Plan for the HAZ by 8th February 
2019. 

Heritage Action Zones were established by Historic England as a means of 
prioritising their input into areas with particularly challenging heritage issues 
and where the built heritage can be seen as a key element of promoting the 
value of a place, and form part of a strategic approach to the delivery of 
economic regeneration. The aim of a HAZ is to achieve economic growth by 
using the historic environment as a catalyst. The HAZ initiative is also 
supported by the Government (Culture White Paper 2016).

A HAZ provides a targeted response to the economic, social and 
environmental needs of a particular area. Through Heritage Action Zones, 
Historic England have indicated that they will work with local partners to 
deliver and implement a programme of support that best meets local 
requirements. With its legacy of historic Ministry of Defence sites, Gosport 
was well placed to secure a HAZ and Historic England have demonstrated a 
commitment to supporting key regeneration initiatives through confirmation 
of  this status and officer time they have committed to developing a Delivery 
Plan.  

Agenda Item 6



1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

As part of the establishment of the HAZ, Historic England have requested 
that the Council sign a Memorandum of Understanding (“MoU”). This is a 
non legally binding document that sets out how Historic England and the 
Council will approach the delivery of the HAZ programme encompassing the 
various individual projects. The MoU sets out mutual objectives and 
commitments on the part of both Historic England and the Council including 
frameworks for governance of the HAZ programme and the production and 
review of the Delivery Plan.

Discussion

Through the HAZ Historic England will fund a full time project manager post 
at the Council for the five years duration of the project, which will be 
managed by the Conservation and Design Manager. HAZ status additionally 
alerts Historic England, at national level, to the priority that will be given to 
Gosport for the five year duration of the project. It is also recognition of their 
need to directly assist towards the delivery of key sites and initiatives. HAZ 
status opens up opportunities to secure grant funding through a number of 
Historic England grant streams, and will secure their support in making 
wider bids for other project funding with a range of potential partners. 

With support from Historic England officers have been working with potential 
HAZ partners on the projects listed in Appendix A, which are likely to form 
core projects within a draft Delivery Plan. These partners include One Public 
Estate; the Defence Infrastructure Organisation; The Gosport Society; 
Hampshire County Council; the Historical Diving Museum and the 
Portsmouth Naval Base Property Trust. Discussions will also be progressed 
with the Local Enterprise Partnership and Task Force. As the list of projects 
is not prescriptive further initiatives are likely to be developed in conjunction 
with local amenity groups, residents groups, and the wider public.  Local 
stakeholders will be kept informed of developments and invited to participate 
through inclusive communication and engagement practices which reflect 
the Council’s commitment to equality and diversity.

The nature of the projects initially put forward and supported by Historic 
England, reflect the unique challenges facing Gosport and fit within three 
broad categories (see Appendix A for a brief summary of each potential 
project):

1) Implementation schemes (For example the Gosport Lines; Alver 
Valley Heritage Trail; potential Stokes Bay Heritage Trail; Priddy’s 
Hard enhancements).

2) Masterplanning and feasibility studies (For example Fort Blockhouse 
and Submarine Escape Training Tower (SETT); Fort Rowner and the 
Daedalus Hangars).

3) Review and designation of heritage assets and conservation areas: in 
particular a review of Alverstoke and Anglesey Conservation Area, to 
include potential to designate a new Stokes Bay Conservation Area; 



2.5

2.6

2.7

a review of Royal Clarence Yard Conservation Area and 
consideration of a Gosport Lines Conservation Area. 

Further projects include a potential publication on Gosport’s Military Heritage 
and the aim to work with Fareham College (who have a high intake from 
Gosport) to develop a programme of apprenticeship opportunities in built 
heritage building techniques with local businesses. Further opportunities 
with schools and colleges will also be explored. These initiatives would 
ensure a legacy is left after the completion of the HAZ.  

Work has already commenced on a feasibility study looking at the future of 
the ‘at risk;’ Fort Rowner (Grade II Listed), separately funded by One Public 
Estate. Briefs for feasibility studies looking at the Daedalus Hangars, the 
SETT, and Fort Blockhouse are also in preparation. It is considered 
essential that the right expertise is engaged to address these complex sites 
to assess practical and viable options for each site. Where funding gaps are 
identified these studies will also explore potential funding streams. Historic 
England will provide their own national expertise within each of these 
studies. 

Governance arrangements for the HAZ are currently being finalised with the 
various partners.

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Risk Assessment

Historic England will have direct input through the governance arrangements 
and will assist the Council in minimising risk to the delivery of projects. All 
projects will require officer input, which the new post will help address, and 
many will be subject to external funding through Historic England or other 
bodies. Some projects may require capital funding over the 5 years of the 
HAZ, and opportunities to assist through the Community Infrastructure Levy, 
partnership funding, One Public Estate and Hampshire County Council are 
amongst those currently being explored.

Conclusion

The HAZ presents a unique opportunity to promote the cultural and historic 
importance of Gosport and use this inherent value to assist with promoting 
economic regeneration and enhancement opportunities. It also recognises 
Gosport’s national significance for its high concentration of military heritage. 
Historic England’s input through the HAZ provides the best opportunity to 
help address some key heritage issues and unlock potential funding 
opportunities.



Financial Services 
comments:

Where relevant projects will be part funded through grant 
bids, partner contributions, and bids for capital funding. 

Legal Services 
comments:

Included within the report.

Equality and Diversity A range of communication and engagement methods will 
be used to invite stakeholder views and participation in 
HAZ initiatives in keeping with the Council’s commitment to 
equality and diversity.  

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

The HAZ will help lever in money to meet objectives within 
the SIP.

Corporate Plan: The Heritage Action Zone will help facilitate appropriate 
investment and development which will assist in delivering 
a number of the Council’s strategic priorities outlined in its 
Corporate Plan.  These include: preserving and enhancing 
Gosport’s heritage and supporting the regeneration of key 
sites.

Risk Assessment: See Section 3.0
Background papers: None
Appendices Appendix A: Draft list of HAZ Projects.
Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Rob Harper, Conservation and Design Manager.



                                                                                              APPENDIX A

          Summary of draft Heritage Action Zone Projects
Note: This list is not prescriptive and discussions are in progress with regard to other projects: including exploring 
potential works on the St George Barracks South site and at Haslar Barracks. It is also important to note that the final 
list of projects may vary from the list detailed below.

Year 1 priority projects are asterisked *

1. Submarine Escape Training Tower (SETT) Feasibility Study*
The SETT is a well-known landmark in Gosport and a unique historic feature linked to a key element of training for all 
submariners and has been used continuously from c1952 until the present, although the site is being run down and 
submarine training is being moved to Scotland imminently. The SETT is a world pioneering structure that was 
replicated by a number of nations worldwide and has a very uncertain future located as it is within the MoD 
Blockhouse Site, due for disposal shortly. The proposed project would be: 1) to seek a review of the listing grade due 
to its unique significance and rarity as a facility; 2) to secure funding to engage relevant specialists to carry out a 
feasibility study to assess the viability of the structure for future use.

2. Blockhouse Masterplan and asset review*
Blockhouse is rapidly heading for release. There is a need to review the designations within the fort and consider 
new listings on site. A detailed review of the site would help safeguard numerous heritage assets and set clear 
parameters for development. It is considered important to carry out this review prior to formal disposal to give the 
site best advantage for future economic regeneration, including elements of residential (both conversions and new 
build). With the review completed a conservation led masterplan could be developed with Historic England, the DIO 
and officer input. Funding is also being sought from One Public Estate for key aspects of this work.

3. Daedalus Hangars Feasibility Study*
The former seaplane base at Daedalus was designated as a conservation area in 1999 at the request of Historic 
England and, with 5 listed buildings in Hangar Square, the site is currently owned by the Homes and Communities 
Agency. A key concern is to ensure that the group of World War One seaplane hangars are protected and developed 
in an appropriate manner. They are ‘at risk’ and will almost certainly require external funding to secure their 
retention as a key part of the regeneration of the site and story of the major importance of the seaplane story in the 
Solent. There are 5 hangars in seaplane square (3 J Type and 2 G Type Hangars) all dating to c.1917. There are also 2 
winch houses associated with these buildings. Specialist advice and external funding will be necessary to ensure their 
future and a conservation led feasibility study is considered essential: viewing these within the broader context of 
the regeneration of the wider site. Whilst Borough officers can play a key part in such an assessment external 
expertise is also required. 

4. ‘At Risk’ Fort Rowner Feasibility Study 
The Victorian Forts in the Portsmouth Harbour Area are one of the region’s biggest assets and challenges. Fort 
Rowner is a sister fort to Fort Brockhurst and Fort Grange: the three being the largest of all the forts within the 
Portsmouth harbour defences. Fort Rowner sits on the north-eastern corner of the extensive site of HMS Sultan and 
Sultan have indicated that the site’s boundary could potentially be redefined to exclude the fort. As the fort has long 
been largely redundant and in poor condition (with parts derelict), this provides an opportunity to assess the 
potential to reuse the site for mixed uses: largely conversion but also potentially including new build. The limited 
MoD uses within the Fort could potentially be relocated within underutilised parts of the HMS Sultan site. One Public 
Estate has funded this study, which could provide a valuable benchmark for the wider fortifications in the area. 

5. Education and training in building maintenance
Officers have been in discussion with Fareham College (who have a large Gosport intake) and Historic England to 
develop a project to provide training for students in heritage conservation work. This could involve on-site training 
and setting up apprenticeships with companies experienced in building conservation. Fareham College have 



indicated that this would be a unique offer in the region and would be of significant benefit to employment 
opportunities within the heritage or building industry. The HAZ would assist in identifying and securing funding in 
partnership not just with Fareham College, but potentially with other local schools and colleges.

6. Creekside Trail (Stokes Bay/Seafields)
Extensive research on the significance of Stokes Bay is near completion by Historic England’s research team. 
Additional research has been gathered locally and promoting the story of Stokes Bay, Stoke Lake, and Haslar Creek 
would add to a wider appreciation of the Borough’s extensive military heritage. Funding for coastal defence works is 
timetabled for the next few years and input into landscaping and interpretation opportunities, linking Stokes Bay to 
the Town Centre, may benefit from input through the HAZ.

7. Alver Valley Heritage Trail 
The Alver Valley is a landscape dominated by the medieval water meadows running north-south, and with the Motte 
and Bailey, medieval Grange Farm, evidence for numerous Neolithic finds, a long barrow, pill boxes and ancient 
woodland, the HAZ presents an opportunity to highlight the significant heritage interest within the area. 

8. Browndown Trenches
Immediately south of the Alver Valley Country Park is the extensive World War One trench systems and although on 
MoD land the area is accessible to the public. Promotional material to highlight the areas significance will form a key 
part of this initiative. It is hoped the HAZ bid may assist in securing on site archaeological survey work to identify the 
extent of the trench system. The trenches, believed to be a unique practice battlefield, could add significantly to the 
offer provided by improvements to the adjacent Alver Valley Country Park.

9. The Gosport Lines: Bastion No.1* to Priddy’s Hard 
The Gosport Lines are an exceptionally rare system of 17th to mid-19th Century earthwork defences that once 
enclosed the town and several harbour-based military sites. Through a recently published SPD the Council is 
committed to seeking opportunities to preserve, enhance and interpret the Gosport Lines stretching from the 
Scheduled Ancient Monument at Bastion No.1 to Priddy’s Hard. This will include highlighting the importance of key 
views, open spaces and landscape features. While the section along the west side of Weevil Lane (also Scheduled) 
can only be accessed by appointment, it is intended to work with the DIO to enable limited access to these defences. 
Furthermore Peter Goodship, of the Portsmouth Naval Base Property Trust, has indicated that he would be keen to 
become involved in works covering the Priddy’s Hard Ramparts. Bastion No.1 would be targeted as a first phase for 
improvements and applications for grant aid.

10. West of Fort Brockhurst landscaping improvements ‘Gateway to Fortifications’
With extensive investment in a new leisure centre and new development underway to the north of Fort Brockhurst, 
there is a good opportunity to enhance the immediate setting of Fort Brockhurst and in particular announce the 
significance of Gosport’s heritage through improved landscaping, signage and information panels announcing the 
area as the ‘Gateway to Gosport’s Fortifications’. This will improve the public’s understanding of the location and the 
wider significance of the many fortifications in the area. It could also enhance Fort Brockhurst as a visitor attraction.

11. Historical Diving Museum*
Historic England have been working with the Council to assist the Historical Diving Museum bring this Grade II* 
Listed building back into full use. This has resulted in securing a Round 1 Heritage Lottery Fund grant and the 
museum are currently working on a Round 2 bid. This complex structure includes the original mid-19th century gun 
battery, late 19th Century and early 20th Century gun emplacements, and a 1980s nuclear bunker. The HAZ could help 
secure further resource by actively supporting external funding opportunities to help inform the conversion, assist 
towards the costs, and highlight the significance of the role of the building over time. New information has revealed 
more substantial details regarding the external fabric and extent of earth mounding which will help inform 
restoration works.

12. Alverstoke/Stokes Bay/Anglesey/Stoke Lake Conservation Area Reviews/Designations
Anglesey and Alverstoke are the focus of the highest concentration of listed buildings within the Borough. At present 
these are encompassed by the Alverstoke and Anglesey Conservation Areas. The area is due a review of its 



boundaries and requires an up to date appraisal and management plan. The Anglesey Conservation Area actually 
splits into three distinct zones: the regency development known as ‘Angleseyville’, the medieval village of 
Alverstoke, and the setting of Stoke Lake. A detailed archaeological assessment of Stokes Bay, and the recent 
characterisation study commissioned by Historic England, has highlighted the historic significance of Stokes Bay and 
the major role it played as part of the Gosport defences. 

This review, which would involve key community groups (Gosport Society, Anglesey Conservation group, and Friends 
of Stokes Bay for example), would also consider the creation of a new conservation area covering Stokes Bay, and 
whether the existing designation would be better suited as three designations based on the three distinct zones. 

13. RCY Conservation Area Review/Management Plan
Royal Clarence Yard has been a regeneration site that has developed over a 20 year period and successfully retained 
all historic buildings of interest on a mixed use site. One of three such yards (Royal William and Royal Victoria being 
the other two), this site includes buildings and structures dating from c.1700 to the 20th Century: all associated with 
manufacturing or storing supplies for the Royal Navy. The area requires a detailed conservation area appraisal and 
management plan to help manage future development and above all assist with facilitating economic opportunities 
along its waterfront. Balancing residents’ needs and the needs of the area’s business community will be a key aspect 
of the review. The area also requires a simplified revised signage plan, information panels on the area’s rich history, 
and a lighting scheme to encourage evening/night time business opportunities. The Residents Association are liaising 
with officers over ideas to preserve and enhance the area’s special interest. There is also the need to secure the 
future use of the Retained Area RCY, still in MoD ownership, and working in partnership with the DIO and HE is seen 
as key to identifying a way forward for a site containing ‘at risk’ listed buildings on a major employment site. 

14. Gosport Lines, Conservation Area Review 
Around 50% of the area encompassed by the Gosport Lines falls outside of a designated conservation areas. To 
complement the interpretation and landscape improvements it may be considered appropriate to designate the area 
encompassed by the Gosport Lines as a single conservation area stretching from Bastion No.1 to Forton Creek. This 
single designation would help highlight and link the significant earthworks, open spaces, and buildings that run along 
the Lines and provide an important policy position for future development following on from the Town Centre SPD. 

15. Gosport’s Military Heritage Publication
Gosport does not have a concise history of the exceptional military legacy in the area. It has numerous dispersed 
studies of elements of the story, from specialist reports to local history publications of varying quality. The many 
military sites, and the fortifications and settlements that sprang up around this military town, merit a single 
publication highlighting the importance of Gosport. A commercially aimed publication would raise the profile of the 
Borough both regionally and nationally. Such a publication is long overdue and the HAZ would be an excellent 
opportunity to draw together wide-ranging existing documentation, explained in an easily understandable way, and 
secure a publisher to take forward the proposal.

16. Review of key Fortification Designations
Officers are concerned to ensure that the most appropriate designations are in place to best assist the regeneration 
of key ‘at risk’ forts: notably Fort Rowner, Blockhouse and Gilkicker. A review of these fortifications would form part 
of the HAZ programme. 

17. Priddy’s Hard: The Camber and other initiatives
In addition to expressing interest in being a partner in the HAZ Bid, Peter Goodship has suggested other projects that 
could be jointly developed: In 1997-9 the Borough oversaw the restoration of the north face of the north wing to the 
Camber. At that time some archaeological work was undertaken but it was recognised that further refurbishment, 
repair and restoration would make the Camber an excellent visit attraction in its own right as part of the story of the 
supply of naval ordnance from the late 18th Century to the Falklands War. The refurbishment of the former street 
furniture in Priddy’s Hard, of Victorian date, could also be an attractive and important element. 





AGENDA ITEM NO.

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 30 January 2019
Title: Lease of No 2 Battery, Stokes Bay to the Historical Diving 

Society 
Author: Property Services Manager
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To consider the terms of the lease proposed by the Council to the Historical Diving 
Society (The Society) to support their aims in repairing and improving the No 2 Battery 
and their long-term objective to develop and sustain a museum of diving history.    

Recommendation

That the Board approve the terms negotiated by Property Services and upon these 
terms authorise the Borough Solicitor to enter into such documentation as is necessary 
to effect the decision.  

1 Background

1.1 The current position is that The Society occupies No 2 Battery on a Tenancy 
at Will dated 2010.  The intention of such an agreement is only temporary and 
is to facilitate occupation prior to a formal lease.  The organisation and 
ambitions of The Society have changed and grown over the past eight years 
and we are now at a position to agree a new lease. 

1.2 No 2 Battery is a Grade II* listed building, a gun battery built around 1860 as 
part of the defensive Stokes Bay Lines.  It is also on Historic England’s (HE) 
Heritage at Risk Register.   

1.3 The Society aims to create and develop a diving museum at No 2 Battery.  
They have already begun but the ambition is to expand the internal layout of 
the Battery and improve the museum experience to make it a tourist attraction.  
To support the function of the museum, The Society is seeking Heritage 
Lottery Funding (HLF) in the region of £700,000 and will submit a bid in March 
2019.  The success of the bid will depend upon the quality of proposal and 
proof of sustainability of the project.  It is this latter element that GBC intend to 
support by the grant of a long lease of the No 2 Battery as the location of the 
museum.   

1.4 Following on from the development of the museum, the No 2 Battery as a 
structure is in need of extensive repair and improvement to bring it up to a 
standard where the diving museum can operate on a sustainable level.  For 
example, control of humidity is an ongoing problem for artefact conservation.   
The Society is therefore seeking a second, separate grant from Historic 

Agenda Item 7



England (HE).  HE only provides grant support to the maintenance of a 
building fabric or structure (hence the need to acquire the earlier functional 
grant from HLF).  The grant to be pursued is in the region of £450,000.  The 
grant of a long lease to The Society will again provide HE with the confidence 
the bidder has a long term interested in the building. 

1.5 In a valuation report (see Appendix C) carried out in 2015 by the Council’s 
external valuer, Hellier Langston, the potential uses and occupiers for this 
property were considered. The view was expressed that given the condition, 
layout and access to the property there would be very few potential occupiers 
and that this would limit the potential, achievable rental value.

1.6 The valuation report went on to assess a potential market rent for the property 
at £1250/annum; this is based on rates of £0.75/sq ft and £0.25/sq ft. A 
commercial letting at this rate would be unlikely to provide for any tenant 
improvements or enhancements to the property so it would continue to 
deteriorate and would most likely become unlettable in a relatively short period 
of time.

2 Report

2.1 With the aims and ambitions of The Society dependent in the main upon 
external grant funding, the Council as the owner of No 2 Battery will enter into 
a lease on the following main terms:

2.1.1 The No 2 Battery premises to be let is shown edged red on the attached plan 
at Appendix A.

2.1.2 The term of the Lease will be 99 years from a date to be agreed.

2.1.3 The rent payable will be one peppercorn reviewed thereafter at five yearly 
intervals.

2.1.4 The Society will take a full repair and insurance lease.  

2.1.5 The Society will be responsible for paying all rates, taxes and outgoings upon 
the premises, including utilities.

2.1.6 The use clause of the premises will be as a museum but written in such a way 
to permit The Society to maximise income through ancillary uses as an 
educational and cultural institution involving lectures, receptions, occasional 
exhibitions and film shows and group visits, including supervised school visits. 

2.1.7 The Society will have a break option on the fifth anniversary.  This is to permit 
The Society to exit the agreement if, for whatever reason, The Society is no 
longer in a viable position to fulfil its aims.

2.1.8 The Council will have a break option on the tenth anniversary on the sole 
condition that The Society has been unable to secure sufficient HE funding to 
undertake repairs to the structure of the No 2 Battery and by definition that no 



essential repair works have been carried out.  It does not necessarily follow 
that the Council will invoke the break option if for example, other funding 
sources are being actively pursued.

2.1.9 The Society will not be permitted to assign any part or the whole of the 
premises without prior landlord consent.  This is because the Council cannot 
permit another occupier benefitting from the peppercorn rent terms of the long 
lease, unless such an assignee is of a similar charitable status with aims that 
are compatible with the use of the No 2 Battery

2.2 The Society will be permitted to carry out all necessary works to repair and 
improve the No 2 Battery.  Such works will be extensive and subject to 
professional heritage architectural report.  The Society will liaise closely with 
HE and the Council’s Conservation Officer on all aspects of the works.  

2.3 The Society will have additional rights under the Lease including the 
positioning of artefacts on the orange land shown on the Plan at Appendix A 
and the rights of way hatched brown on the same marked E1 and E2 with E1 
an emergency exit and E2 leading to the electric meter and store marked MP.  
The Society will also be permitted to use the gate marked A.

2.4 The Borough Solicitor will include other clauses, as necessary, to protect the 
Council’s interests

2.5 The Council is obliged under statute to obtain best consideration on all 
property disposals but under the General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 
(circular 6/03) local authorities can dispose of any interest in land held by 
them for less than best consideration, providing the undervalue does not 
exceed £2million, where the authority considers that this will help it to 
contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the area. It is considered that this proposed letting 
will contribute to both the economic and environmental wellbeing of the area.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 There is minimal risk to the Council in granting this lease, in fact it is 
considered to be to the Council’s advantage to do so.

3.2 If the Council decides against granting a long lease then it is unlikely that The 
Society would be successful in securing grant funding from either the HLF or 
HE.  Such grants to organisations like The Society are dependent upon 
security of tenure.   The result would probably end ambitions to develop a 
diving heritage museum.     

3.3 In the situation of there being no long lease The Society could continue to 
operate the museum at its current level but in slowly degrading premises.  The 
costs to maintain could become prohibitive and possibly lead to the museum 
closure and the loss of the facility.  The Council would then need to maintain 
the Grade II* listed structure from its own financial resources.



4 Conclusion

4.1 The grant of the long lease provides security of tenure to The Society 
underpinning any future request for grant funding.  The lease is on suitable 
terms for this reason but allows either party to break early if circumstances 
dictate

4.2 By granting the lease the Council makes a long term commitment to support 
The Society in its ambitious plans to build and develop a high quality diving 
heritage museum and move towards ensuring the long term sustainability of 
the historic No2 Battery building

Financial Services comments: The risk of future repairs and maintenance 
expenditure will be transferred from the Council to 
the Historical Diving Society

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
EIA: It is not thought that any groups or individuals will 

be disadvantaged as a result of this proposal.
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

None

Corporate Plan: The long lease of the site will contribute  towards 
the strategic priorities to:
Raise Aspirations;
Enhance the Environment &
Develop the Economy

Risk Assessment: Contained within the report
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ 1:500 Plan
Appendix ‘B’ Photograph
Appendix ‘C’ Valuation Report

Report author/ Lead Officer: Dean Pickett x5750



Appendix A

Plan – No 2 Battery



Appendix B

Photo



Appendix C

Valuation Report



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

VALUATION REPORT 
 

 

 

No 2 BATTERY 

STOKES BAY ROAD 

GOSPORT 

PO12 2QU 
 

 

 

On behalf of 

 

Gosport Borough Council 
 

 

Report Dated 

 

12 February 2015 

 

 

 

Our Ref:  ADC/No 2 Battery  

  

Your Ref:  G015045 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 

CUSTOMER:  Gosport Borough Council 

 

 
LOCATION: 

 

The subject property is located approximately 2 miles west of 

Gosport town centre on the coast close to Lee-On-The-Solent.  The 
property is accessed via Stokes Bay Road, which runs along the 

coast. 
 

 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

 

The property comprises a Grade II listed former Battery currently 

used as a museum by the Historical Diving Society. 
 

 

TENURE Freehold 

OCCUPATIONAL LEASES: 
 

Current - Tenancy at Will with a peppercorn rent 
 

Proposed – 25 year lease 
 

 

 
MARKET RENT: £1,250 per annum 

 
 

 

VALUATION DATE: 
 

6 February 2015 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 

 
 

 
IMPORTANT: This summary must not be relied upon without reference to the full 

report.   
 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

 
Contents  

 
1. Instruction 

 

2. Location 

 

3. Description 

 
4. Accommodation 

 

5. Services 

 

6. Condition and Repair 

 

7. Environmental 

 

8. Tenure 

 

9. Occupational Leases 

 

10. Planning 

 
11. Rating 

 

12. Market Commentary 

 

13. Comparable Evidence 

 
14. Valuation 

 

15. Confidentiality 

 

Appendix 1:  Letter of Instruction 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Gosport Borough Council 

Town Hall,  

High Street 

Gosport 

Hampshire 

PO12 1EB 

 

ATO – Mr F Hicks 

 

 

 

PROPERTY –NO 2 BATTERY, STOKES BAY ROAD, GOSPORT, PO12 2QU 

 

INSTRUCTION – RENTAL VALUATION 

 

 

1.0 INSTRUCTIONS 

 

In accordance with your instructions, we can confirm Anthony Crocker BSc (Hons) MRICS 

carried out an inspection of the premises on Friday 6th February 2015, which is also the date 

of valuation.  We can confirm our inspection of the property and this report has been 

prepared in accordance with the RICS Professional Standards (The Red Book) January 2014.   

 

Your instructions to us are to provide at the date of valuation our opinion of the:- 

 

 Market Rent 

  

We can confirm that we have had no previous involvement with the subject property, we 

therefore consider ourselves to be external valuers with no conflict of interest as defined by 

the RICS Professional Standards (The Red Book) January 2014. 

 

We can confirm Anthony Crocker BSc (Hons) MRICS has the knowledge, skills and 

understanding necessary to undertake a valuation competently.  We also confirm the Mr 

Crocker is an RICS Registered Valuer. 

 

The Letter of Instruction can be found to the rear of this report at Appendix 1. 

 



 

2 
 

2.0 LOCATION 

 

The subject property is located approximately 2 miles west of Gosport town centre on the 

coast close to Lee-On-The-Solent.  The property is accessed via Stokes Bay Road, which 

runs along the coast. 

 

The property is adjacent to Stokes Bay Mobile Home Park as well as a good sized car park, 

which also provides access to the beach and a café. 

 

 
 

 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

3.0 DESCRIPTION 

 

The subject property comprises a Grade II listed c1860, and later c19 battery, the main 

structure is part of the larger defence system which involved the construction of a moat 

from Fort Monkton to Fort Gomer. 

 

The west-facing unit comprises 5 casemates separated by ammunition stores, constructed 

in red brickwork with cambered vaulting to the casemates and semi-circular vaulting to 

the stores; the loopholes are framed in granite. On the outside, the loopholes are 

set within earth-works. 

 

  
 

The Battery is currently a home to the Historical Diving Societies varied museum collection 

and has been since 2010.  The main battery area is utilised for display purposes with the 

western section either unused/inhabitable or used for maintenance/storage. 

 

  
 

The building, which in recent history has been used as archive storage for the local Council 

and as a nuclear bunker is in a poor state of repair, with evidence of water ingress and 

damp evident at various points throughout the building.  This has led to failings in the brick 

and plaster works, which now require significant works and investment to rectify. 



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

  
 

The Historical Diving Society has erected several exhibits around the perimeter but they do 

not impact on the structure.  The gun emplacements, which were briefly inspected show 

signs of age and have failings in the concrete structures that require attention. 

 

 

4.0 ACCOMMODATION 

 

The units have been measured on site on a Gross Internal Area basis in accordance with the 

RICS Code of Measuring Practice (6th edition), a brief summary is as follows:- 

 

Floor Description Sq. M. Sq. Ft. 

Ground Main display area 144.78 

 

1,558 

 

 Workshop area 24.81 

 

267 

 

 Magazine/shell store 

(inhabitable) 

19.51 210 

 Inhabitable store 

(western section) 

43.21 465 

 

The above measurements exclude the access corridors. 

 

 

5.0 SERVICES 

 

We understand that only electricity is provided to the building, we assume that other mains 

services could be added at significant expenditure from the adjacent road. We have not 

however tested any of these services and have assumed they are in full working order and 

of adequate supply and capacity for normal use. 

 

 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

6.0 CONDITION AND REPAIR 

 

Whilst at the premises we took some note of its construction and condition, but we must 

emphasise we have not carried out a structural survey as this did not form part of our 

instructions.   

 

Accordingly we can give no detailed assurance with regard to freedom from rot, damp 

related or other serious structural problems and we cannot confirm that any parts of the 

property that are covered, unexposed or inaccessible are free from defect.  Indeed, we 

make the proviso that inspection of those parts that have not been inspected would neither 

reveal material defects or cause us to alter our valuation materially. 

 

Furthermore, we have made no enquiries or investigations to determine whether asbestos 

products, high alumina cement or calcium chloride additive or any other potentially 

deleterious material was used in the construction of the property or has since been 

incorporated.  Our valuation assumes the premises to be free of such materials. 

 

Within the limitations of our inspection we found that the property is in a poor state or repair 

and requires significant investment to ensure the long term usability and safety of the 

subject site, failure to do so could result in the building becoming unusable within the next 3 

– 5 years.  

 

We have not arranged to test the electrical, gas or other services, and we cannot give 

assurances with regard to the suitability or condition of these installations and the 

appliances.  Our valuation assumes them to be in satisfactory order. 

 

 

7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL 

 

We have not arranged for any intrusive site investigation and we have not been provided 

with any specialist reports in relation to past or present uses of the subject properties or 

neighbouring land.  The subject property is situated within a recognised business park; we 

would envisage the current use to be a low environmental risk.  

 

We have valued the premises on the basis that contamination does not exist.  However if it 

subsequently becomes apparent that contamination, seepage or pollution does exist at the 

properties, or neighbouring land there may be an impact upon the value reported.  We have 

assumed that if the sites are fully developed that full Environmental testing will be carried 

out.   

 

 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

8.0 TENURE 

 

We understand the premises to be of freehold tenure and for the purposes of our valuation 

we assume it is not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions, encumbrances 

or outgoings, and that good title can be shown.   

 

Furthermore, we presume that the property and its value are unaffected by any matters 

which would be revealed by a Local Search and replies to the usual enquiries, or by a 

Statutory Notice, and neither the property nor its condition, nor its use or intended use, is of 

or will be in contravention of Local Authority or other Statutory regulations and 

requirements. 

 

 

9.0 OCCUPATIONAL LEASES 

 

We understand the Historical Diving Society have occupied the property since 2010 under a 

tenancy at will at a peppercorn rent.  We understand Gosport Borough Council retain some 

responsibility for maintaining the site. 

 

We have been asked to provide a rental valuation on the basis that the Historical Diving 

Society will take a new 25 year lease in order to facilitate the potential for funding in order 

to complete works to the building. 

 

 

 

10.0 PLANNING AND OTHER PROVISOS 

 

We have made no formal enquiries of Gosport Borough Council 

 

As far as we are aware the property is not located within a conservation area, it is however 

Grade II listed. 

 
We believe that Stokes Bay Road is a fully adopted highway.  From informal enquiries of the 

Council we understand that there are no Local Authority or highway schemes likely to 

adversely affect the property.   

 

We have consulted the Environment Agency website and confirm the area surrounding the 

property is in an area that is unlikely to flood.   

 

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 applies to these premises.  It is necessary 

for a full fire risk assessment of the premises to be in place identifying fire hazards, people 

at risk and the preparation of an emergency plan and regular review of the plan. 

 

 
  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

11.0 RATING 

 

We have made enquiries with reference to the business rates assessments regarding the 

subject site.  The listing contains the following details: -  

 

Address – Battery No 2, Stokes Bay Road, Gosport, Hants, PO12 2QU 

 

Description – Museum and Premises 

 

Rateable Value - £2,850 

 

The Uniform Business Rate for 2014/15 is £0.482 or £0.471 for rateable values below 

£18,000. 

 

 

12.0 MARKET COMMENTARY 

 

We have been asked to provide a rental value based on what could potentially be achieved 

in the open market if the subject property were available to let.  The property is a piece of 

Gosport history and one of few surviving Napoleonic era forts that is in use and accessible 

by the public.   

 

The museum attracts approximately 3,500 visitors a year (5,000 in year one) with an adult 

charge of £6 and concession of £3 and under 5’s free.  Given the number of visitors it is 

highly unlikely that the museum will make a profit.  

 

As mentioned within this report the property is in a very poor state of repair and requires 

significant investment to protect the buildings future.  There is evidence of damp 

penetration and water ingress at several points throughout the building, which if left will 

make the building inhabitable.  

 

In determining our opinion of rent we have had to consider potential uses and occupiers.  

The property is not situated in a densely populated part of Gosport/Lee-on-the Solent and 

apart from seasonal occupiers wanting to make use of the proximity to the beach is unlikely 

to attract a retailer.   

 

Given it has no parking, no natural light and access issues it is highly unlikely to appeal to an 

office occupier, there is also a café in close proximity and given the lack of services it is 

unlikely to appeal to a restaurateur or café operator. 

 

The condition, layout and access therefore leave very few potential occupiers; this limits the 

achievable rental value.  The Valuation Office agency values the building at £2,850 per 

annum, however we are of the opinion that this could potentially be challenged and 

reduced. 

 

 

 

 



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

We are of the opinion that the only realistic occupiers are those similar to the current 

occupier, which are willing to pay a nominal sum to occupy the premises.  In our opinion the 

priority has to be for anyone willing to take the property also to have the responsibility of 

maintaining and protecting the Grade II listed building. 

 

 

13.0 COMPARABLE EVIDENCE 

 

Given the unique nature of the subject property comparable evidence of similar properties 

is rare.   

 
In determining our opinion of Market Rent we are of the opinion that some value should 

be attached to the main display areas and workshop but given the current unusable state 
of the western section do not believe it is appropriate to adopted a rent against these 

parts.     
 

We have therefore adopted a rent of £0.75 per sq. ft. against the main display areas and 

£0.25 per sq. ft. on the workshop/storage area. 
 

 

14.0 VALUATION 

 

Our valuation has been carried out in accordance with RICS Professional Standards (The Red 

Book) January 2014 which defines Market Rent as meaning: 

 

‘The estimated amount for which an interest in real property should be leased on the 

valuation date between a willing lessor and willing lessee on appropriate lease terms in 

an arm’s length transaction, after proper marketing and where the parties had each 

acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. 

 

We have valued the long leasehold interest in the subject property adopting the comparable 

method of valuation having had regard to the transactions detailed above. 

 

Our opinion of Market Rent of the freehold interest as at the date of valuation is: -  

 

 

£1,250 per annum 

 

We have made no allowances for Tax implications, including VAT, in our valuation; nor have 

we reflected any element of marriage or special purchaser value; we confirm we do not 

believe there is any such additional value attaching to the property now or likely to arise in 

the future. 

 

 

  



 

Hellier Langston 
Gosport Borough Council 

No 2 Battery, Gosport 

15.0 CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

This report is provided for the stated purpose and is for the sole use of the customer; Hellier 

Langston can accept no responsibility to any third party.  Furthermore, neither the report 

nor any part of it may be produced without Hellier Langston's written approval 

 

We can confirm that the valuer, Mr A D Crocker and Hellier Langston, is an external valuer 

as defined by the RICS Professional Standards (The Red Book) January 2014; furthermore 

we can confirm that there is no conflict of interest in this matter and we have relevant 

experience and knowledge of valuing this type of property in this particular locality. 

 

We trust in this report we have provided you with the information you require, but if you 

have any queries or we can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

 

 
 

A D CROCKER BSc (Hons) MRICS 

DIRECTOR 

 

 

HELLIER LANGSTON 

 

  



Board/Committee: Economic and Development Board
Date of Meeting: 30 January 2019
Title: Renewal of lease-in of land at Forton lake from the 

crown estate
Author: Property Services Manager
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To consider the terms offered by The Crown Estate agents for a renewal of 
the lease-in of land at Forton Lake for the retention of grassed open space.

Recommendation

That the Board approve the terms negotiated by Property Services and upon 
these terms authorise the Borough Solicitor to enter into a new agreement 
with The Crown.  

1 Background

1.1 The land is a reclaimed part of the southern side of Forton Lake 
foreshore, approx 310sqm in area, laid out to grass forming an 
additional piece of community land at the rear of Parham and Ferrol 
Roads.  The land is shown in more detail on the plan and photo at 
Appendix A

1.2 The current lease is of 25 years and expires on 23 March 2019.  The 
current rent is £167.00.   

1.3 The original reclamation in 1993/94 was a Council sponsored older 
urban area environmental improvement project designed to improve 
and increase public open space.

2 Report

2.1 The new lease will be a similar term of 25 years from 23 March 2019, 
paying an annual rent of £187 for the first five years, thereafter this 
rent will be reviewed every five years on the Retail Price Index (RPI) 
method.

2.2 The remaining terms of the previous lease will carry through to this 
new agreement.  Of main importance is that responsibility for the 
maintenance and cleanliness of the land remains with the Council

2.3 The Council will not be permitted to assign or underlet any part of the 
land nor permit any nuisance upon the land.

Agenda Item 8



2.4 The use remains as open space only

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 If the Council should decide not to enter into a new agreement with 
the Crown the Council would need to excavate the reclamation and 
return the land to its former state  

3.2 There is no serious risk to the Council in continuing with the lease.  It 
carries with it a small rent burden and maintenance liabilities.  

4 Conclusion

4.1 In order to retain this open space the Council needs to enter into a 
new lease with the Crown.  

4.2 The terms of the new agreement have been negotiated and 
represent the best likely outcome in terms of future rent.

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments: None
Crime and Disorder:
Equality and Diversity: Not applicable
EIA: 
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

None

Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: Contained within the report
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ 1:500 Plan
Appendix ‘B’ Photograph

Report author/ Lead Officer: Dean Pickett x5750



Appendix A

Land at Forton Lake



Appendix B

Photo


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Economic Development Board held 14 November 2018
	Minutes

	6 GOSPORT HERITAGE ACTION ZONE
	APPENDIX A

	7 LEASE OF NO.2 BATTERY TO THE HISTORICAL DIVING SOCIETY
	Valuation Report - No2 Battery
	Instructions.pdf
	00000001
	00000002



	8 RENEWAL OF LEASE-IN OF LAND AT FORTON LAKE FROM THE CROWN ESTATE

